
 

Agenda items shown in blue correspond to attachments/handouts included in Agenda Packet and/or links to additional 

information. Underlined blue text represents live hyperlinks. 

Tehama County Continuum of Care  

Executive Council Meeting 

June 11, 2025 

Agenda 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

2. Adoption of Meeting Minutes 
Meeting minutes for consideration: Regular Meeting held May 14, 2025  

3. Additions to the Agenda 

4. Project Updates: 

a. PATH Plaza – PATH 

b. Permanent Housing – Travis Lyon 

c. Stakeholders’ Collaborative – Heather Henderson 

d. Rural Indoor Objective (RIO) – Andrea Curry 

5. CoC Coordination and Strategic Planning 
Andrea Curry 

a. Financial Report 

6. Capacity Building 
Andrea Curry 

a. Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program Update 

7. HMIS/CES 

a. 2025 Point in Time Count 



 

 1 

Tehama County Continuum of Care  

Executive Council Meeting 

 

Meeting Minutes 

May 14, 2025 

Meeting held via Zoom 

 

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE: PRESENT EXCUSED 

Johnna Jones, Chairperson x  

Jayme Bottke, Tehama County Health Services Agency x  

Travis Lyon, Tehama County Health Services Agency (Alternate) x  

Kris Deiters, Red Bluff City Council x  

Cody Strock, Red Bluff City Council (Alternate)   

Colleen Lewis, Poor and the Homeless Tehama County Coalition (PATH)  x 

Michael Glackler, PATH (Alternate)   

Gail Locke, General Collaborative Chairperson x  

Pati Nolen, Tehama County Board of Supervisors  x 

Robert Burroughs, Tehama County Board of Supervisors (Alternate)   

Kimberlee Monroe, Empower Tehama  x 

Honey Touvell, Tehama County Community Action Agency x  

Continuum of Care Coordinator: Andrea C. Curry 

Notes by: Heather Henderson and Adriana De La Torre 

Meeting called to order at 1:33 P.M. 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

2. Adoption of Meeting Minutes 

The minutes and agenda from the Executive Council meeting held on April 9, 2025 were made 

available prior to this meeting for review. No changes were requested. A motion to accept the 

minutes was made by Kris and seconded by Travis. Motion passed. 

3. Additions to the Agenda  

None. 

4. Project Updates: 

a. PATH Plaza Update 

Neither Colleen nor Michael from PATH were available to attend this meeting due to a 

scheduling conflict. Andrea provided updated statistics on Navigation Center services 

from Apricot and discussed progress towards the design of the quarterly reporting format 

expected to be introduced in July. 

b. Permanent Housing Update 
Travis Lyon 

Travis reported that there are a few vacancies at Olive Grove, some of which must be 

refurbished before they can be leased to new tenants. One of the Red Bluff projects, Palm 



 

 2 

Villas, was recently notified that they have been awarded Low Income Tax Credits, which 

completes their funding stack. The other Red Bluff project, The Bluffs, recently submitted an 

application to the Homekey+ funding program.  

c. Stakeholders’ Collaborative 

Heather Henderson 

Heather reported that the last meeting was held on May 7. Andrea presented on the  

HHAP 6 Regionally Coordinated Homeless Action Plan. The group reviewed Key Actions 

from the HHAP-5 Plan and provided feedback regarding the inclusion of each in the 

HHAP-6 Plan. We got to hear a lot of input and feedback from the stakeholders during the 

meeting. This was the first of three public meetings required for the HHAP-6 application.  

d. Rural Indoor Objective (RIO) 

Andrea went over the RIO Cumulative Report for April 2025, which was included in the 

agenda packet for this meeting.  

5. CoC Coordination and Strategic Planning 
Andrea Curry 

a. Financial Report  

Andrea provided an update on the grant funding being administered by the CoC through 

its Administrative Entity and currently open subgrants as of April 30, 2025.  

6. Capacity Building 
Andrea Curry 

a. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round 6 

i. Housing Tools Proposal Revision to include HHAP-6 Activities 

A Staff Report on this matter was provided to council members in advance of this 

meeting as part of the agenda packet. CoC Staff would like to enlist help from 

Housing Tools in completing the HHAP-6 application.  

Motion: A motion was made to authorize The Vitality Project to sign revised Housing 

Tools Proposal for Fiscal Years 2023-27 Scope of Services to include HHAP-6 activities. 

Moved by: Kris Deiters 

Seconded by: Travis Lyon 

Ayes: Jayme Bottke, Kris Deiters, Johnna Jones, Gail Locke, Travis Lyon, Honey Touvell 

Noes: None 

Abstentions: None 

Result: APPROVED 

7. HMIS/CES 

a. 2025 Point in Time Count 

The PIT Count subcommittee met in April and recommended that we include information 

on inflow into homelessness and exits to permanent housing in our final report/presentation 

slide. Andrea reported that HUD has opened the HDX 2.0 portal. Final reports are due to 

HUD by June 13. Andrea will enter the data into the HUD portal to ensure that any data 

errors are identified, then prepare the report/presentation slide for review by the PIT Count 

Subcommittee.  

Meeting adjourned at 3:06 PM. 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 11, 2025 at 1:30 PM and will be held via Zoom.   

https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hhap_program.html


Project Start Date: 5/1/2024
Report Date: 5/31/2025

Adults 390
Children* 24
Total 414

26 7.97%
7

33

42 12.56%
10
52

9
6

15

294 158 1 84 29 130 28 387

Rural Indoor Objectives (RIO) Cumulative Report

RIO Participants Identified:

RIO Participants in Interim Housing:

RIO Participants in RRH "Housing Search":

Emergency Shelter
Transitional Housing
Total

Rural Indoor Objectives (RIO) is a collaborative project of providers in Tehama County funded through Round 3 of the State of California's Encampment Resolution Funding program.

RIO Participants Indoors as of Report Date:

Housed through Rapid Rehousing, still enrolled (not yet exited)
Total

RIO Participants are identified through self-report of residing in one of the prioritized encampments on a Coordinated Entry Surveys 
and/or through Street Outreach contact within the RIO project period. 

*Children expected to join RIO-participant parent(s)/caregiver(s) once housed are counted here. Not all children counted were residing with parent(s)/caregiver(s) in encampment(s).

of RIO Participants are Sleeping Indoors as of Report Date.
20.53%

Interim Housing models provide temporary accomodations to individuals experiencing homelessness while they 
work on addressing immediate barriers to accessing permanent housing. Individuals counted here were in either 
Emergency Shelter or Transitional Housing as of the Report Date shown at top.

RIO Participants Receiving One or More Services in Reporting Period (by Project Type):

Day Shelter Emergency Shelter
Permanent 
Supportive 

Housing
Rapid Rehousing Services Only Street Outreach Transitional 

Housing
Total 

(Unduplicated)
of RIO Participants Have Received One or 

More Services Since Project Start Date

93.48%

of RIO Participants in 
Interim Housing on 

Report Date.

have been 
permanently housed 

as of Report Date.

ERF-funded RRH
Other RRH program(s)
Total

RIO Participants in Permanent Housing:

In Interim Housing
33

Rapid Rehousing (RRH) is a service model that pairs direct financial assistance with housing move-in costs and short- to medium-term 
rental assistance with intensive case management and service navigation services to assist households with achieving self-sufficiency 
in permanent housing. Individuals counted here are generally in the "housing search" phase of the program.

Permanent housing is community-based, intended to 
be long-term (without a set length of stay and subject 
to a lease or sublease agreement that can only be 
terminated for cause).

In Permanent Housing Total Now Indoors
52 85

Exited any HMIS project to a Permenent Housing Destination:



 

FINANCIAL REPORT – June 2025 

(Agenda Item 5.a) 

 

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, June 11, 2025 Page 1 

 

Tehama CoC Financial Report June 2025 
As of May 31, 2025: 

Open Funding Awards: 

  
HHAP-2 

(CoC) 

HHAP-3 

(Joint) 

HHAP-4 

(Joint) 

HHAP-5 

(Joint) 

HHAP-

1/2 
(County) 

HUD 

CoC 

Planning 

(2023 

NOFO) 

TCDE 

(x3) 
HHIP HHIP ERF-3-R Total 

Initial 

Award 
$250,000  $833,358  $749,744  $482,212  $36,639  $50,000  $45,123  $367,288  $384,712  $14,103,947  $17,303,023  

Expended 

to date 
$230,000  $750,042  $667,697  $72,620  $4,459  $8,704  $0  $103,971  $303,934  $2,403,899  $4,545,327  

Remaining 

in Award 
$20,000  $83,316  $82,047  $409,592  $32,180  $41,296  $45,123  $263,317  $80,778  $11,700,048  $12,757,696  

Expenditure 

Deadlines: 
6/30/2026 6/30/2027 6/30/2027 6/30/2028 6/30/2025 

6/30/2026 

10/31/2025 N/A N/A N/A 6/30/2027  

 
  

 

 Anticipated Funding Awards:  
 

 
HHAP-5 2nd 

Disbursement 
Total 

Anticipated Amount $374,343  $374,343  

Expenditure Deadlines:  6/30/2028 

Open Subgrantee Agreements: 

Status Project 
Total 

Award 

Expended 

to Date 

Remaining 

in Awards Expenditure 
Deadlines 

In Contract PATH Plaza Development/Operations $1,313,130  $1,309,342  $3,788  6/30/2025 

In Contract First Christian Church Corning $308,666  $73,854  $234,812  6/30/2025 

In Contract PATH Street Outreach (Includes ERF Backfill) $298,839  $242,330  $56,509  6/30/2025 

In Contract PATH Rapid Rehousing $245,131  $184,720  $60,411  6/30/2025 

In Contract Housing Tools Systems Support - 2023-2027 $78,278  $61,910  $16,368  12/31/2027 

To Be Awarded TO BE AWARDED - NVCSS Deposit Assistance $80,000  $0  $80,000  TBD 

In Contract Lutheran Social Services - Youth Housing $326,360  $20,144  $306,216  6/30/2028 

In Contract City of Red Bluff - HLO (ERF) $369,392  $0  $369,392  6/30/2027 

In Contract Empower Tehama Behavioral Health Services (ERF) $130,835  $21,276  $109,559  6/30/2027 

In Contract Empower Tehama Victim Services (ERF) $619,165  $60,860  $558,305  6/30/2027 

In Contract PATH Moving Forward (ERF) $1,784,577  $0  $1,784,577  6/30/2027 

In Contract PATH Plaza Navigation Center (ERF) $4,993,990  $1,485,177  $3,508,813  6/30/2027 

In Contract PATH Rapid Rehousing (ERF) $868,703  $85,870  $782,833  6/30/2027 

In Contract Sale Transitional (ERF) $1,371,035  $210,224  $1,160,811  6/30/2027 

In Contract PATH Street Outreach (ERF) $1,073,513  $178,078  $895,435  6/30/2027 

Pre-Contract TCHSA Mobile Crisis Team (ERF) $262,198  $0  $262,198  6/30/2027 

Pre-Contract TCHSA Mobile Outreach (ERF) $107,361  $0  $107,361  6/30/2027 

Pre-Contract TCHSA PSH Supportive Services (ERF) $372,086  $0  $372,086  6/30/2027 

Pre-Contract Pacific West Communities PSH Supportive Services (ERF) $800,000  $0  $800,000  6/30/2027 

In Contract Housing Tools Project Coordination (ERF) $90,000  $21,083  $68,917  6/30/2027 

  Total $15,493,258  $3,954,866  $11,538,392   



 

FINANCIAL REPORT – June 2025 

(Agenda Item 5.a) 

 

Tehama County Continuum of Care Executive Council Meeting, June 11, 2025 Page 2 

 

 

CoC Coordination, Grant Administration and HMIS: 

 

 Total 

Budget 

Expended 

to Date 
Remaining Expenditure 

Deadlines 

ERF Grant Administration, 2024-2027 $626,895  $112,160  $514,735  6/30/2027 

ERF HMIS, 2024-2027 $325,837  $58,621  $267,216  6/30/2027 

ERF Systems Support, 2024-2027 $138,183  $2,998  $135,186  6/30/2027 

HUD CoC Planning Activities $50,000  $9,302  $40,698  10/31/2025 

HHAP Grant Administration (HHAP-1/2/3/4/5) $212,120  $149,949  $62,171  6/30/2028 

HHIP HMIS $182,740  $106,416  $76,324  N/A 

HHIP CoC Infrastructure/Coordination $422,592  $165,165  $257,427  N/A 

Lived Experience Engagement (LEE) $16,000  $10,501  $5,499  N/A 

Set up for Success Program (Household establishment for PSH) $3,500  $171  $3,329  N/A 

Vehicle Assistance Pilot Program $15,000  $10,133  $4,867  N/A 

Total $1,992,868  $625,418  $1,367,449   

 

Summary: 
As of May 31, 2025: 

  Current Anticipated Total 

Funds Available 
(Grant funds awarded to Tehama CoC but not yet expended) 

$12,757,696  $374,343  $13,132,039  

Funds Committed 
(Grant funds committed/sub-awarded to local projects, not yet expended) 

$12,757,696  $148,145  $12,905,841  

Balance 
(Grant funds awarded to Tehama CoC but not yet committed/sub-awarded to local projects) 

$0  $226,198  $226,198  

 

 




